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 Yes  No

CR04954-2020

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:
 Preliminary Information Statement
 Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc.

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Manila, Philippines

4. SEC Identification Number
24015

5. BIR Tax Identification Code
000-282-553

6. Address of principal office
No. 900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila
Postal Code  
1007

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(632) 8522-8801 to 04

8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders
August 18, 2020, 11:00am, via live stream

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
Jul 22, 2020

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor
We are not asking for Proxy Solicitations

Address and Telephone No.
N/A

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common 1,124,999,969

13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
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Philippine Stock Exchange, common share

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to
the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc.
DAVIN

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or 

Special Stockholders' Meeting 

References: SRC Rule 20 and 


Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders'
Meeting Aug 18, 2020

Type (Annual or
Special) Annual

Time 11:00am
Venue via live stream
Record Date Aug 8, 2020

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books

Start Date Aug 8, 2020
End date Aug 18, 2020

Other Relevant Information

Please see attached Preliminary Information Statement of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc.

Filed on behalf by:
Name Candy Dacanay-Datuon
Designation Corporate Secretary



July 22, 2020 

Securities and Exchange Commission 
G/F Secretariat Bldg., PICC Complex 
Roxas Blvd., Pasay City 1307 

Attention: Mr. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.  
Director, Markets and Securities Regulation Department 

Ms. Rachel Esther J. Gumtang-Remalante 
Head, Corporate Governance and Finance Department 

Philippine Stock Exchange 
9th Floor, PSE Tower 
28th Street corner 5th Avenue, 
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 

Attention: Ms. Janet A. Encarnacion 
Head, Disclosure Department 

Gentlemen: 

For submission is the Preliminary Information Statement (SEC 20-IS) of Da Vinci 
Capital Holdings, Inc. for its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to be held on August 18, 
2020, 11:00 am via live stream .

Thank you, 

Candy H. Dacanay – Datuon 
Corporate Secretary  
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

SEC FORM 20-IS 

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20 
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE 

1. Check the appropriate box:
[x] Preliminary Information Statement
[  ] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

3. No. 900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4. SEC Identification Number: 24015

5. BIR Tax Identification Code: 000-282-553

6. No. 900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila  1007 
Address of principal office    Postal Code 

7. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: 02-8523-3055

8. Via live - stream
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders: July 22, 2020

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations: We are not asking for Proxy Solicitations.

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8
of the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class        Number of Shares of Common Stock 
Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding 

Common Share         1,124,999,969 

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

Yes  [x]    No [  ]

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein: Philippine Stock Exchange, common share 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING 

To our stockholders:  

Please be informed that the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of DA VINCI CAPITAL 
HOLDINGS, INC. will be on August 18, 2020, 11:00 am, via live stream at 
www.davincicapital.com.ph 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Certification of Notice and Quorum

3. Election of Directors including independent directors

4. Appointment of External Auditor and fixing its remuneration

5. Other Matters

6. Adjournment

Only stockholders on record as of August 8, 2020 are entitled to notice and vote in the 
meeting.  

Considering the COVID 19 pandemic, the stockholders may only participate in the meeting by 
remote communication, in absentia or by appointing the Chairman of the meeting as their 
proxy. The requirements and procedures in participating in absentia or by remote 
communication will be available in the Information Statement. The Information Statement will 
be accessible on the company website www.davincicapital.com.ph starting July 24, 2020. 

The stockholders who are attending by proxies should e-mail their duly accomplished proxies 
to corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com on or before August 14, 2020. The company’s 
stock transfer agent will validate the votes on August 17, 2020, 1:00 pm, at the office of the 
Corporate Secretary, Tabacalera Building, No. 900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila, 1007.  

Manila, July 20, 2020. 

Candy H. Dacanay – Datuon 
Corporate Secretary  

http://www.davincicapital.com.ph/
http://www.davincicapital.com.ph/
mailto:corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com
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EXPLANATION OF AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Call to Order
The Chairman of the meeting, Mr. Lucio L. Co, will welcome the stockholders and formally
open the meeting at 11:00 am.

2. Certification of Notice and Quorum
The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Candy H. Dacanay-Datuon, will certify that notices to
stockholders were duly sent, and there is a quorum to transact business.

3. Election of Directors including independent directors
The Chairman of the meeting will announce the names of the nominees for the election of
directors and will open the floor for stockholders’ voting.

The profile of the nominees will be provided in the Information Statement. 

4. Appointment of External Auditor and fixing its remuneration
A resolution for the appointment of R.G. Manabat & Company (KPMG) and its proposed
remuneration as External Auditor of the company for year 2020 will be presented to the
stockholders.

5. Other Matters
The Chairman will open the floor for any question from the stockholders.
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PART 1: INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT 

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders. 

(a) August 18, 2020, 11:00 AM, via live stream on the company website
Principal Office: No. 900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila 1007

(b) The Information Statement will be available on the company’s website
www.davincicapital.com.ph beginning on July 24, 2020.

We are not asking for a proxy and you are requested not to send us a proxy. 

Item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal 

Section 80 Title X of the Revised Corporation Code provides that any stockholder of a 
corporation shall have the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of the shares 
in the following instances:  

(a) In case an amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing
or restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing
preferences in any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of
extending or shortening term of corporate existence;

(b) In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of
all or substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Revised
Corporation Code;

(c) In case of merger or consolidation; and

(d) In case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than the primary
purpose of the corporation.

There are no matters or actions to be taken up at the meeting that may give rise to a possible 
exercise by stockholders of their appraisal rights.  

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon 

(a) No director, officer, nominee or any associate of the foregoing person has
substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any
matter to be acted upon, other than election or appointment to office:

(b) No director, officer, nominee or any associate of the foregoing person has
informed the company in writing that he intends to oppose any action to be
taken by the company at the meeting and indicate the action which he
intends to oppose.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof 

http://www.davincicapital.com.ph/
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(a) Number of outstanding shares as of June 30, 2020: 1,124,999,969 common
shares

Number of votes entitled: one (1) vote per share

(b) All stockholders on record as of August 8, 2020 shall be entitled to vote in the
meeting.

(c) Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code states that stockholders entitled to
vote shall have he right to vote the number of shares of stock standing in their
own names in the stock books of the corporation as of record date. The said
stockholder may: (a) vote such number of shares for as many as there are
directors to be elected; (b) cumulate said shares and give one (1) candidate as
many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by number of
shares owned; or (c) distribute them on the same principle among as many
candidates as may be seen fit. Provided, that the total number of votes cast shall
not exceed the number of shares owned by the stockholders as shown in the
books of the corporation multiplied by the whole number directors to be elected.

On July 20, 2020 special board meeting of the company, the board allows the
stockholders to attend and vote in absentia, details of which are provided in the
notice of the meeting.

(d) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

1. Security ownership of more than 5% of the stock of the company as of June 30,
2020:

2. Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers of the company as of June
30, 2020:

Title of 
Class 

Name, 
address of 
record 
owner 

Relationship 
with the 
Company 

Name of 
Beneficial 
Owner and 
Relationship 
with Record 
Owner 

Citizenship Number of 
shares held 

Percent 

Common Invescap 
Incorporated 

Stockholder Indirect Filipino 956,203,336 85.00% 

Common SB Equities, 
Inc. 

Stockholder Indirect Filipino 110,225,600 9.80% 
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3. None of the directors has any voting trust agreement for their ownership of more than 5%
of the stock of the company.

4. There has been no change in control of the company in the last fiscal period.

5. Foreign ownership level as of June 30, 2020: 1,290,404 common shares or 0.11% of the
outstanding capital stock.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers 

(a) Presented below are the business profile of the company’s Directors, Executive Officers
and Key Officers.

(i) Directors

(A) Directors and Executive Officers

The board of directors of the company is composed of seven members, three are male, and 
four are female. No director of the company concurrently serves as a director in five or more 
listed companies. The directors' business profile is as follows:  

(1) Lucio L. Co, Filipino, 65 years old, Chairman

Mr. Co has been the Chairman and President of the company since 2013.  

Mr. Co is currently the Chairman and President of the following companies: Bellagio Holdings, 
Inc., Canaria Holdings Corporation, Ellimac Prime Holdings, Inc., Invescap Incorporated, 
Puregold Duty Free, Inc., and Puregold Properties, Inc. 

He is also the Chairman of Alcorn Petroleum and Minerals Corporation, Entenso Equities, 
Inc., NE Shopping Centers Corporation, PG Holdings, Inc., Pajusco Holdings Corporation, 
Puregold Duty Free (Subic), Inc., Puregold Finance, Inc., Puregold Realty Leasing & 

Title of 
Class 

Name of Beneficial 
Owner 

Nature of 
beneficial 
ownership 

Citizenship Number of 
shares 

Percent of 
Outstanding 
Voting 
Shares 

Common Lucio L. Co Indirect Filipino 
 1 

0.00% 

Common Ma. Editha D. Alcantara Indirect Filipino 
 1 

0.00% 

Common Maridel S. Behagan Indirect Filipino 
 1 

0.00% 

Common Maritez Q. Tacus Indirect Filipino 
 1 

0.00% 

Common Jocelyn M. Rodulfa Indirect Filipino 
 1 

0.00% 

Common Angelo Patrick F. 
Advincula 

Indirect Filipino 
  1 

0.00% 

Common Antero Jose M. 
Caganda 

Indirect Filipino 
 1 

0.00% 
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Management, Inc., San Jose City I Power Corp., Union Energy Corporation, and Union 
Equities, Inc. 

He is a Director of these companies: Catuiran Hydropower Corporation, Cleangreen Energy 
Corporation, Forbes Corporation, Grass Gold Renewable Energy (G2REC) Corporation, 
Karayan Hydropower Corporation, Kareila Management Corporation, LCCK & Sons Realty 
Corporation, Luis Co Chi Kiat Foundation, Inc., Meritus Prime Distributions, Inc., Montosco, 
Inc., League One Finance and Leasing Corporation, Pamana Water Corporation, Tower 6789 
Corporation and VS Gripal Power Corporation. He is a member of the Board of Trustees of 
Adamson University and Luis Co Chi Kiat Foundation, Inc. 

Mr. Co holds positions in other PSE listed companies: Chairman of Cosco Capital, Inc. and 
Puregold Price Club, Inc. and Director of Philippine Bank of Communications.  

Mr. Co has been an entrepreneur for the past 40 years. 

(2) Ma. Editha D. Alcantara, Filipino, 49 years old, Director and Treasurer

Ms. Alcantara serves as Chairman of Blue Ocean Holdings, Inc. and Jurist Realty, Inc.; 
President of PSMT Philippines, Inc.; Vice-President and Treasurer of Invescap Incorporated; 
Treasurer of Blue Ocean Foods, Inc, KB Space Holdings, Inc., Maxents Investments, Inc. and 
Premier Freeport, Inc., Director of Cosco Price, Inc., Fertuna International Trading, Inc., Subic 
Freeport Zone Hamburgers Corporation and Corporate Secretary of P.G. Holdings, Inc. 

Ms. Alcantara is a graduate of Polytechnic University of the Philippines with a degree of 
Bachelor of Economics and Politics in 1992. 

(3) Maritez Q. Tacus, Filipino, 59 years old, Director

Ms. Tacus also serves as President of Etro Management Corporation, Director of Invescap, 
Incorporated, Jurist Realty, Inc., and Kuleto's Restaurant, Inc.; Treasurer of Lucida 
Management Corporation; and Corporate Secretary of Entenso Equities, Inc. and Fertuna 
International Trading, Inc. 

Ms. Tacus is a graduate of Far Eastern University with a degree of Bachelor of Science in 
Management. 

(4) Maridel S. Behagan, Filipino, 54 years old, Director

She also serves as Treasurer of Etro Management Corporation and Fertuna International 
Trading, and Director of Invescap, Incorporated. 

(5) Jocelyn M. Rodulfa, Filipino, 54 years old, Director

She is currently acting as Director of Dearborn Realty Corporation, Invescap, Incorporated, 
Jurist Realty, Inc., Puregold Properties, Inc., and Star Alliance, Inc.; and President of Maxent 
Investments, Inc. 

(6) Atty. Angelo Patrick F. Advincula, Filipino, 50 years old, Independent Director

He is currently a Partner in Zambrano and Gruba law firm, and he specializes in Commercial 
Law, Commercial Litigation and Arbitration, Government Policy, as well as Taxation. He is 
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competent in commercial litigation and arbitration in the fields of BOT infrastructure contracts 
and water concession contracts. He has been engaged by the Office of the Government 
Corporate Counsel, the Department of Justice and the National Irrigation Authority. He has 
previously been consulted for the World Bank regarding risk allocation and mitigation on bulk 
water supply projects, as well as rationalizing the issuance of National Government 
Guarantees in Private Sector Participation Projects. He has likewise been engaged as a sub-
consultant for the United States Trade Development Agency in the preparation of bid 
documents for water supply projects in the southern Philippines. In the field of taxation, he is 
engaged in tax structuring, preparation of tax-exempt vehicles, giving tax advice to multi-
national clients, handling tax assessments, and VAT refund cases. 

(7) Atty. Antero Jose M. Caganda, Filipino, 50 years old, Independent Director

He is currently a Partner at Zambrano and Gruba law firm with a specialty in Corporate Law, 
Tax Advisory and Banking, Mergers and Acquisitions, Investments Law, and Special Projects. 
He has advised the majority shareholder of a Philippine commercial bank and its financial 
subsidiaries on post-acquisition issues, such as cost rationalization, consolidation of 
redundant operations, and manpower rightsizing. He has advised a Philippine business 
process outsourcing ("BPO") company.  

(8) Atty. Candy H. Dacanay – Datuon, Filipino, 41 years old, Corporate Secretary

Atty. Dacanay is a graduate of Colegio De San Juan de Letran with a degree of Bachelor of 
Arts in Political Science, with a distinction of cum laude. She finished Bachelor of Laws from 
the University of Santo Tomas in 2003 and admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2004.  

She started her career as Associate Counsel of Puregold Price Club, Inc. from 2004 to 2011. 
She became the company's Assistant Corporate Secretary and at the same time Compliance 
Officer in 2012, and Data Privacy Officer in 2018.  

Concurrently, she is the Assistant Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer of Cosco 
Capital, Inc. (a listed company) and Puregold Price Club, Inc. (a listed company), Kareila 
Management Corporation (S&R warehouse) and Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer 
of League One Finance and Leasing Corporation.   

Atty. Dacanay has completed the Harvard Business School Online Certificate 
Program ,"Sustainable Business Strategy", in 2020.   

Significant Employees 

There is no person in the company who is not an executive or key officer but who is expected 
to make a significant contribution to the operation of the business.  

Family Relationships   

None  

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 

As of December 31, 2019, and the past five years, the company has no director, executive 
officer or principal officer who is involved in any of the following:  
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(1) Bankruptcy case.

(2) Convicted by final judgment of any criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign.

(3) The subject of any order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his
involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities.

(4) Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the
Commission or comparable foreign body or a domestic or foreign exchange or other
organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or
commodities law or regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or
vacated.

For discussion of related party transactions, please to the 2019 Audited Financial Statements 
hereto attached as Annex “C.”   

(b) No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the board of directors since
the date of the last annual meeting of security holders because of a disagreement with the
company on any matter relating to the company's operations, policies or practices.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers 

(A) Summary of Compensation Table

The company has no operation or business; thus, it is not paying executive compensation. 

(B) Standard Arrangements

The company has no standard arrangements according to which the directors are 
compensated, directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director except for per diem 
allowances.  

(C) Other Arrangements

The company has no other arrangements according to which the directors are compensated, 
directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director except for per diem allowances. 

(D) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
Arrangements

All employees, including executive and principal officers, have employment contracts with the 
company, which are consistent with the existing labor laws of the country. The company has a 
retirement plan for its employees that is also in concordance with current labor laws. 

(E) Warrants and Options

None.  

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants 

(a) The company’s external auditor for 2019 is:
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Mr. Dindo Marco M. Dioso 
Handling Audit Partner  
CPA License No. 0095177 
SEC Accreditation No. 1387-AR-1 (Group A) valid until May 31, 2020. 
R.G. Manabat & Co.  
The KPMG Center, 9/F 6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City Philippines  
+63 (2) 885 7000

(b) Mr. Dindo Marco M. Dioso or his representatives are expected to be present at the
security holders' meeting; they will have the opportunity to make a statement, if they desire to
do so; and they are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

(c) There were no changes in or disagreements with independent accountants on accounting
and financial disclosure.

(d) The company will pay the independent accountant the amount of up to One Hundred Fifty
Thousand Pesos (P150,000.00) for the tax period 2020 as audit fee.

Item 8. Compensation Plans 

No action is to be taken up with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash 
compensation may be paid or distributed during the meeting.  

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9.  Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange 

No action is to be taken up with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities 
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the company during the meeting. 

Item 10.  Modification or Exchange of Securities 

No action is to be taken up with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the 
registrant, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the 
company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.  

Item 11. Financial and Other Information 

Attached hereto are the 2019 Audited Financial Statements as Annex “C” and First Quarter 
Financial Report as Annex “D”.  

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matter 

No action is to be taken up during the meeting that will involve mergers, consolidations, 
acquisitions or any similar transaction of the company.  

Item 13.  Acquisition or Disposition of Property 

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property during 
the meeting.  
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Item 14.  Restatement of Accounts 

No action is to be taken up with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital, or surplus 
account of the company during the meeting.  

D. OTHER MATTERS

Item 15.   Action with Respect to Reports 

No action is to be taken up  with respect to any report that will be submitted to a vote of 
security holders.  

Item 16.   Matters Not Required to be Submitted 

No action is to be taken up  with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted to 
a vote of security holders.  

Item 17.   Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents 

No action is to be taken up  with respect to any amendment of charter, bylaws or other 
documents.   

Item 18.  Other Proposed Action 

(a) Election of regular and independent directors.

(b) Appointment of external auditor and fixing its audit service fees.

Item 19. Voting Procedures 

(a) The affirmative vote of at least majority of the shares present or represented in the
meeting shall be required to approve all actions submitted to the vote of stockholders.

(b) The stockholders may cast their votes by sending proxies, or in absentia by any means of
remote communication. The stockholders entitled to vote shall have he right to vote the
number of shares of stock standing in their own names in the stock books of the corporation
as of record date.

For election of directors, a stockholder may: (a) vote such number of shares for as many as 
there are directors to be elected; (b) cumulate said shares and give one (1) candidate as 
many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by number of shares owned; 
or (c) distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as may be seen fit. 
Provided, that the total number of votes cast shall not exceed the number of shares owned by 
the stockholders as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied by the whole number 
directors to be elected.  

All votes of the stockholders must be submitted by email to 
corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com on or before August 14, 2020. 

(c) The company will engage the services of its Stock Transfer Agent, BDO Stock Transfer
Agent, to count and validate the votes of the stockholders.
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SIGNATURE PAGE 

 After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, we hereby certify 
that the information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct.  This report is signed in 
the City of Manila, Philippines on July 22, 2020.  

DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

By:  

Candy H. Dacanay – Datuon 
Corporate Secretary  



PROXY 

Date: ____________________ 

The undersigned hereby appoints the Chairman of the meeting as a proxy to vote all the 
shares of the undersigned at the 2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of DA VINCI CAPITAL 
HOLDINGS, INC. set on August 18, 2020, 11:00 AM, via live stream at 
www.davincicapital.com.ph. 

The proxy shall vote subject to the instructions indicated below, and the proxy is authorized to 
vote in his discretion on other business as may properly come at the meeting. Where no specific 
authority is indicated below, the proxy shall vote for the approval of the corporate matters listed 
below and in favor of the nominated directors named below. 

Agenda Items Yes No Abstain 

1. Appointment of RG Manabat & Company as External Auditor for the
year 2020 and up to the total amount of P150,000.00 as audit fee

2. Election of Directors Number of Votes 

a. Lucio L. Co

b. Ma. Editha D. Alcantara

c. Maritez Q. Tacus

d. Maridel S. Behagan

e. Jocelyn M. Rodulfa

f. Atty. Angelo Patrick F. Advincula as Independent Director

g. Atty. Antero Jose M. Caganda as Independent Director

____________________________________________ 
Complete Name of Stockholder and/or Representative 

Please email a scanned copy of this Proxy at corporate.governance@davincicapital.com.ph on 
or before August 14, 2020. For corporate stockholders, attach a Secretary’s Certificate stating 
the authority of the signatory named herein to appoint the Proxy and sign this Proxy Form.   

ANNEX "A"

http://www.davincicapital.com.ph/
mailto:corporate.governance@davincicapital.com


Guidelines for Participating via Remote Communication and Voting in Absentia in 
2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc.  

The 2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM) of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. (the 
Company) is on August 18, 2020 at 11:00 am and with a record date of August 8, 2020. 

In consideration of the health and safety concerns of everyone brought by COVID 19 
pandemic, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved and authorized our 
stockholders to participate in the ASM via remote communication and to exercise their right 
to vote in absentia. 

Registration 

The stockholder must notify the Corporate Secretary of his/her intention to participate in the 
ASM via remote communication and exercise his/her right to vote in absentia by no later than 
August 10, 2020, by emailing at corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com and by submitting 
there the following supporting documents/information:  

• Individual Stockholders
1. Copy of valid government ID of stockholder/proxy
2. Stock certificate number/s
3. If appointing a proxy, copy of proxy form duly signed by stockholder (need

not be notarized)
4. Email-address and contact number of stockholder or proxy

• Multiple Stockholders or joint owners
1. Stock certificate number/s
2. Proof of authority of stockholder voting the shares signed by the other

registered stockholders, for shares registered in the name of multiple
stockholders (need not be notarized)

3. Copy of valid government IDs of all registered stockholders
4. Email-address and contact number of the authorized representative

• Corporate Stockholders
1. Secretary’s Certification of Board resolution appointing and authorizing a

proxy to participate in the ASM
2. Valid government ID of the authorized representative
3. Stock certificate number/s
4. Email-address and contact number of the authorized representative

• Stockholders with Shares under broker account
1. Certification from the broker as to the number of shares owned by the stockholder
2. Valid government ID of stockholder
3. If appointing a proxy, copy of proxy form duly signed by stockholder (need

not be notarized)
4. Email-address and contact number of stockholder or proxy

Online Voting 

The stockholders who have sent us their intention to participate in the ASM shall be notified 
via email of their log-in passwords for the voting portal. The stockholders can then cast their 
votes following these simple steps:  

1. Log-in to the voting portal by clicking the link on our company website.
2. Use  the log-in passwords sent by email to the email address of the

stockholder provided to the Company to access the voting portal.

ANNEX "B"



3. Upon accessing the portal, the stockholder can vote on each agenda item.
4. Once the stockholder has finalized his/her vote, he can proceed to submit his

vote by clicking the “Submit” button.

ASM Livestream 

The stockholders who have the log-in passwords can participate in the ASM to be 
broadcasted live by the Company in our website. Further instructions on how to access the 
live stream will also be posted at www.davincicapital.com.ph  

There will be video recordings of the ASM which a stockholder on record may avail upon 
request. 

Open Forum 

There will be Open Forum during the meeting, where representatives of the Company may 
answer as many questions as time will allow.  However, a stockholder may send their 
questions in advance by sending an email at corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com on 
or before August 17, 2020.  

For any queries or concerns, please contact the office of the Assistant Corporate Secretary 
at (632) 8523-3055 or via email at corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com. 

http://www.davincicapital.com.ph/
mailto:corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com
mailto:corporate.governance.davinci@gmail.com
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DA VINCI CAPITAL. HOLDINGS, INC. 
900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila 

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Management of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. (the "Company") is responsible for 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules 
attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, in accordance with 
the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free form material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The Management is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

The Management reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules 
attached therein. 

R. G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the Management, has audited 
the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on 
Auditing, and in its report to the Management, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of 
presentation upon completion of such audit. 

" 

Signature _____ ......,...._.,. __ _ 
Lucio L. Co 
Chairman of the 

Signature_-+-_...-....... --+-
""""'"

...-,,� 
Ma. Editha D. 
Treasurer 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __ day of JUN 2 6 2020 
affiants exhibiting to me their respective identifications, as follows: 

Name 

Lucio L. Co 

Ma. Editha D. Alcantara 
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R.G. Manabat & Co. 
The KPMG Center, 9/F 
6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 
Philippines 1226 
Telephone +63 (2) 8885 7000
Fax +63 (2) 8894 1985
Website home.kpmg/ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The Stockholders and Board of Directors 
Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. 
No. 900 Romualdez Street 
Paco, Manila 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. 
(the "Company"}, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 
2019, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019, and its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

PRC-BOA Registration No. 0003, valid until November 21, 2023 
SEC Accredilalion No. 0004-FR-5, Group A. valid until November 15. 2020 
IC AccreditattOn No. F-2017/010.R. vaWd until August 2e, 2020 

R.G. Manabat & Co., a Philippine partnership and a member firm of 1he KPMG network of independent BSP. Selected External Audlor.;, Catego,y A, valid for 3-year audit period 
member finns affiliated with KPMG lntemationat Cooperative ("KPMG lnlemational"), a Swiss entity. (2017 to 2019) 



Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have 
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Other Matter 

The accompanying financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 were audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements on April 10, 2019. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended 
December 31, 2019, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' 
report thereon. The SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended 
December 31, 2019 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this 
auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial re' orting 
process. ,��C()-P�NOACAN Sit 4N� 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audft of the Financial Statements $ JUN 3 � "'' 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fina l��u�A�o�ETA
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frau or 
error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

■ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

■ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

■ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

■ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

■ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 



Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 
No.15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 17 to financial 
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is 
the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our 
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Mr.
Gregorio I. Sambrano, Jr.

R.G. MANABAT & CO. 

G . . \. � , � 
G� I. SAMBRANO, JR.
p;���r"v 
CPA License No. 088825 
SEC Accreditation No. 1548-AR-1, Group A, valid until December 17, 2021
Tax Identification No. 152-885-329 
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-36-2018 

Issued September 20, 2018; valid until September 19, 2021
PTR No. MKT 8116783 

Issued January 2, 2020 at Makati City

June 30, 2020 
Makati City, Metro Manila
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DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(With Comparative Figures for 2018) 

Note 

ASSETS 

Noncurrent Assets 
Other noncurrent assets 5 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 6 

Accrued expenses 7 
Due to related parties 8 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
Capital stock 9 

Additional paid-in capital 9 

Deficit 

Total Equity 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

2019 

P23,897,634 

P1,439,000 
562,576 

6,762,212 

8,763,788 

25,875,000 
46,033,000 

{56,774,154} 

15,133,846 

P23,897,634 
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2018 

P23,796,027 

P1 ,439,000 
567,276 

5,607,884 

7,614,160 

25,875,000 
46,033,000 

{55,726, 133} 

16,181,867 

P23,796,027 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(With Comparative Figures for 2018 and 2017) 

Note 2019 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 

PSE maintenance fee P731,250 

Professional fee 150,000 
Retainer fee 130,800 

Taxes and licenses 8,072 

Penalty 
Miscellaneous fee 27,899 

LOSSES (P1 ,048,021) 

LOSS PER SHARE 
Basic loss per share 11 (P0.0009) 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

2018 

P612,375 
71,300 

130,800 
7,242 

102,000 
24,054 

(P947,771) 

(P0.0008) 
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2017 

P824,180 
77,280 

130,800 
26,160 

47,240 

(P1, 105,660) 

(P0.0010) 



Balances at December 31, 2016 
Loss for the year

Balances at December 31, 2017 
Loss for the year

Balances at December 31, 2018 
Loss for the year

Balance at December 31, 2019 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(With Comparative Figures for 2018 and 2017) 

Additional Paid-
Capital Stock in Capital 

(Note 9) •(Note 9) 

P25,875,000 P46,033,000 

25,875,000 46,033,000 

25,875,000 46,033,000 

P25,875,000 P46,033,000 

• 

Deficit Total 

(P53,672,702) P18,235,298 
(1,105,660) (1,105,660) 

(54,778,362) 17,129,638 
(947,771) (947,771) 

(55,726,133) 16,181,867 
(1,048,021) (1,048,021) 

(P56,774,154) P15, 133,846 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(With Comparative Figures for 2018 and 2017) 

Note 2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Losses before income 
tax/operating cash flows 
before changes in working 
capital (P1 ,048,021) (P947,771) 

Decrease (increase) in other 
noncurrent assets (101,607) (79,027) 

Increase (decrease) in accrued 
ex�nses (4,1ooi, 159,100 

Net cash used in operating 
activities (1,154,328) (867,698) 

CASH FLOWS FROM A 
FINANCING ACTIVITY 

Advances received from related 
�rties 8 1,154,328 867,698 

CASH AT THE END OF YEAR p - p 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

2017 

(P1, 105,660) 

48,676 

(1,056,984) 

1,056,984 

p 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(With Comparative Figures for 2018 and 2017) 

1. Reporting Entity

Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc, (the "Company") was incorporated and registered 
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 5, 
1963, and its shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on 
September 3, 1991. On April 26, 2013, the SEC approved the amendments to 
certain sections of the Company's articles of incorporation which include the 
extension of its corporate life for another 50 years from November 5, 2013 to 
November 5, 2063. The principal activities of the Company are to purchase, 
subscribe for or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, 
mortgage, pledge., exchange or otherwise dispose of real and personal property of 
every kind and description, including shares of stocks, bonds, debentures, notes, 
evidences of indebtedness and other securities, contracts or obligations of any 
corporation or corporations, association or associations, domestic or foreign, engage 
in, but not limited to, the business of real estate, manufacturing, trading and 
agribusiness, and to pay, in whole or in part, in cash or by exchanging therefor, 
stocks, bonds and other evidences of indebtedness or securities of this or any other 
corporation, and while the owner or holder of any such real or personal property, 
stocks, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of indebtedness or other securities, 
contracts or obligations, to receive, collect and dispose of the interest, dividends and 
income arising from such property and to possess and exercise in respect therefor all 
the rights, powers and privileges of ownership, including all voting powers on any 
stock so owned, without however engaging in dealership in securities or in stock 
brokerage business, to the extent permitted by law, to aid, either by loans or by 
guaranty of securities or in any other manner, any corporation, domestic, or foreign, 
any share of stock, or any bond, debenture, evidence of indebtedness or other 
security whereof are held by this corporation or in which it shall have interest, and to 
do any act designed to protect, preserve, improve or enhance the value of any 
property at any time held or controlled by this corporation or in which it at that time 
may be interested. 

The Company is 85% owned by lnvescap Incorporated, its Parent Company that is 
incorporated in the Philippines. The remaining 14.48% and 0.52% are owned by 
other domestic corporations and by Filipino individuals, respectively. 

The Company's registered office address is located at No. 900 Romualdez Street, 
Paco, Manila. 

2. Basis for the Preparation

Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are based on International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). PFRS which are issued by the Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), consist of PFRS, Philippine Accounting 
Standards (PAS), and Philippine Interpretations based on the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations. 



Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis of 
accounting. 

Fu_nctional and Presentation Cu_rrency 
The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented 
in Philippine Peso, which is the Company's functional currency. All amounts are 
rounded to the nearest Peso except when otherwise indicated. 

Authorization for Issuance of the Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were approved and authorized for issue by the 
Company's Board of Directors (BOD) on June 27, 2020. 

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years 
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting 
policies as explained below. 

Adoption of New Standard, Amendments to Standards and Interpretation 
The Company has adopted the following new standard, amendments to standards 
and interpretation starting January 1, 2019 and accordingly, changed its accounting 
policies. The application of these amendments to standards has not had any 
significant impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may 
affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements. 

■ PFRS 16, Leases- supersedes PAS 17, Leases
■ PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
■ PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features . with Negative

Compensation (Amendments)
■ PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

(Amendments)
■ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
■ Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - various standards

Other Noncurrent Assets 
Excess Tax Credits 
Excess tax credits pertain to overpayment of income taxes in prior years. These are 
accumulated and are reduced when deducted against income tax payable. 

Input Taxes 
Input tax represents the value-added tax (VAT) due or paid on purchases of goods 
and services subjected to VAT that the Company can claim against any future 
liability to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) for output VAT from sale of goods 
and services subjected to VAT. The input tax can also be recovered as tax credit 
against future income tax liability of the Company upon approval of the BIR. Input tax 
is stated at net realizable value. An allowance is provided for any portion of the input 
tax that cannot be claimed against output tax or recovered as tax credit against 
future income tax liability. Input tax that are expected to be realized within 12 months 
after the reporting period are classified as current asset, otherwise, these are 
classified as other noncurrent asset. 

- 2 -



Financial Instruments 
Date of Recognition 
The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statement of 
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments 
The financial assets or financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and 
subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying 
the effective interest rate method of amortization for any related premium, discount 
and any directly attributable transaction costs. These financial instruments are 
included in current assets or current liabilities if maturity is within twelve months from 
the reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets or liabilities. 

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company's financial instruments consists of 
financial liabilities. 

Financial Liabilities 
Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses. Financial liabilities 
are classified as measured at amortized cost or financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is 
classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. 

As at December 31, 2019, the financial liabilities of the Company are measured at 
amortized cost. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost 
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or designated 
as at FVTPL upon inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from 
operations or borrowings. The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value 
and subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of 
applying the effective interest rate method of amortization for any related premium, 
discount and any directly attributable transaction costs. These financial liabilities are 
included in current liabilities if maturity is within twelve months from the reporting 
date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabilities. 

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company's financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost include accounts payable, accrued expenses and due to related 
parties. 

De recognition 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged, cancelled or has expired. 

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss. 

-3-



Ca ·tal Stock 
Ordinary or common shares are classified as equity. The proceeds from the issuance 
of ordinary or common shares are presented in equity as capital stock to the extent 
of the par value of the issued and outstanding shares and any excess of the 
proceeds over the par value of the shares issued, less any incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issuance, net of tax, is presented in equity as additional paid-in 
capital. 

Retained Earnings {Deficit) 
Retained earnings (deficit) represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income 
or loss, dividend contributions, correction of prior year errors, effect of changes in 
accounting policy and other capital adjustments, if any. 

Expense RecQflnition 
Expenses are recognized when a decrease in future economic benefit related to a 
decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability that can be measured reliably has 
arisen. Expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between costs 
incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and 
rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over 
several accounting periods and the association can only be broadly or indirectly 
determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic 
benefits or when, and to the extent that future economic benefits do not qualify, or 
cease to qualify, for recognition as an asset. 

Related Parties and Related Pa Transactions 
Related party relationships exist when the party has the ability to control, directly or 
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over 
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also 
exist between and/or among entities which are under common control with the 
reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or stockholders. In 
considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the 
substance of the relationship, and not merely to the legal form. Related parties may 
be individual or corporate entities. 

ln_come Taxes 
Current Income Tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used as basis to compute the amount are 
those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred Income Tax 

Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all 
temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, 
and carryforward benefits of unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) to the 
extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits of unused 
NOLCO can be utilized. 

-4-
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The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future 
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets 
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that 
sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax assets to be 
recovered. 

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally 
enforceable right exists to offset current income tax assets against current income 
tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the 
same taxation authority. 

VAT 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except: 

■ where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

■ receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of 
"Other noncurrent assets" in the statement of financial position. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Where the Company expects some or all of the provision to be reimbursed, the 
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement 
is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, 
net of reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions 
are discounted using the current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the 
risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

Conti encies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed 
in the notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the 
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Events After the Reportinqi Date 
Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the 
Company's position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the 
financial statements. Events after the reporting date that are not adjusting events are 
disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material. 
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Amendments to Stand_ards Not Yet Adopted 
A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning 
after January 1, 2019. However, the Company has not applied the following 
amended standards in preparing these financial statements. Unless otherwise 
stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Company's 
financial statements. 

The Company plans to adopt the following amended standards on the respective 
effective dates, as applicable. 

Effective January 1, 2020 

• Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in PFRSs sets out
amendments to PFRSs, their accompany documents and PFRS practice
statements to reflect the issuance of the revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting in 2018 (2018 Conceptual Framework). The 2018
Conceptual Framework includes a new chapter on measurement, guidance on
reporting financial performance, improved definitions of an asset and a liability,
and guidance supporting these definitions, and clarifications in important areas,
such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in
financial reporting.

Some standards, their accompany documents and PFRS practice statements 
contain references to, or quotations from, the International Accounting Standards 
Committee (IASC)'s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in 
2001 or the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2010. The 
amendments update some of those references and quotations so that they refer 
to the 2018 Conceptual Framework, and makes other amendments to clarify 
which version of the Conceptual Framework is referred to in particular 
documents. 

• PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Definition of Material
(Amendments) refine the definition of material. The amended definition of
material states that information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.

The amendments clarify the definition of material and its application by: 
(a) raising the threshold at which information becomes material by replacing the
term "could influence" with "could reasonably be expected to influence";
(b) including the concept of "obscuring information" alongside the concept of
"omitting" and "misstating" information in the definition; (c) clarifying that the
users to which the definition refers are the primary users of general purpose
financial statements referred to in the Conceptual Framework; (d) clarifying the
explanatory paragraphs accompany the definition; and (e) aligning the wording of
the definition of material across PFRS Standards and other publications.

The amendments are expected to help entities make better materiality 
judgements without substantively changing existing requirements. 

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted. 
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■ Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business clarify that to be considered a
business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs. It narrows the definitions of a business and of outputs by
focusing on goods and services provided to customers and by removing
reference to an ability to reduce costs. It adds guidance and illustrative examples
to help entities assess whether a substantive process has been acquired. It
removes the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. It adds an
optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

The amendments are effective beginning on or after January 1, 2020. Earlier 
application is permitted. 

4. Management's Use of Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires 
management to exercise judgments, make accounting estimates and use 
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
and related disclosures. Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions 
used in arriving at the accounting estimates to change. The effects of any change in 
accounting estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become 
reasonably determinable. 

Accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 
The key estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are described below: 

Recognition of Deferred Income Tax Asset 
The Company reviews its deferred income tax assets at each reporting date and 
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient 
future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax 
assets to be utilized. 

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has carryforward benefits of 
unused NOLCO amounting to P2,737,852 and P2,090,163, respectively, for which 
no deferred income tax asset was recognized (see Note 10). Management believes 
that it is not probable that future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
its deferred income tax asset to be utilized prior to its expiration. 
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5. Other Noncurrent Assets

The detail of the Company's other noncurrent assets are shown below: 

Excess tax credits 
Input VAT 

2019 

P23,234,026 
663,608 

P23,897,634 

2018 

P23,234,026 
562,001 

P23,796,027 

Excess tax credits pertain to prepaid taxes carried over from previous taxable years. 

6. Accounts Payable

The Company's accounts payable pertains to PSE maintenance fee, retainers' fee 
and other expenses which are paid in advance by the former stockholders in behalf 
of the Company amounting to P1 ,439,000 in both years. 

7. Accrued Expenses

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company's accrued expenses pertain to 
professional fees and other accruals which amounted to P562,576 and P567,276, 
respectively. 

Accrued professional fees amounted to P150,000 and P202,400 as at December 31, 
2019 and 2018, respectively. 

8. Related Party Transactions

The Company and its stockholders are related parties since the latter are members 
of the key management personnel of the Company. 

Balances and transactions between the Company and its related parties are 
disclosed below: 

Due tD Related Parties 
Balances of due to related parties as shown in the statement of financial position are 
summarized as follows: 

Key Management Personnel 
Transaction with key management personnel is detailed as follows: 

Stockholders advances 

December 31, 2019 

Transactions 
During the 

Year 

P1 ,154,328 

Outstanding 
Balance 

PS,762,212 

December 31, 2018 
Transactions 

During the 
Year 

P867,698 

Outstanding 
Balance 

P5,607,884 

Stockholders' advances represent amounts owed to related parties for working 
capital requirements of the Company. 

Transactions with stockholders are non-interest-bearing, unsecured, payable on 
demand and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given. 



Remunera_tion of Ke emen_t Personnel 
In both years, no remuneration was given to the Company's directors and other 
members of key management personnel. 

9. Capital Stock

The capital stock of the Company is as follows: 

Ordinary shares 
Additional paid-in capital 

2019 

P25,875,000 

46,033,000 

P71,908,000 

Ordinary shares carry one vote per share and a right to dividends. 

2018 

P25,875,000 
46,033,000 

P71,908,000 

Additional paid-in capital pertains to amount paid on the issuance of shares in 
excess of par value. 

Ca ital Stock 
Below are the details of the ordinary shares: 

2019 2018 

Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Authorized: 
Ordinary share 

(P0.023 par value 
per share) 1,200,000,000 P27,600,000 1,200,000,000 P27,600,000 

Preferred shares 
(P0.10 par value 
per share 3,000,000,000 P300,000,000 3,000,000,000 P300,000,000 

Subscribed and 
outstanding: 
Ordinary share 

(P0.023 par value 
per share) 1,124,999,969 P25,875,000 1,124,999,969 P25,875,000 

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has not yet issued any of its 
3,000,000,000 preferred shares at P0.10 par value per share amounting to 
P300,000,000. 

Movement in issued and outstanding capital stocks follow: 

Date Ac tivity Issue Price 
Number of Shares 

Com m on Shares 

_S�ep_te_m_b _e _r 3 __ ,_1_99_1 ___ Is_su_a_nc_e_o_f _ca...,p_·1a_l_st_o _ck_s_a_s _of_l_ist_ing..,_d_a t _e ____ P_2_.8_5 ___ 1, 124,999,969 

1,124,999,969 

Issued and outstanding common shares are held by 470 equity holders as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018. 

The Company's preferred shares have the following features: 
a. Have the same voting rights as ordinary shares.
b. Have the same dividend rights as ordinary shares.
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c. In the event of liquidation, dissolution, receivership, bankruptcy, or winding up of
the affairs of the Company, voluntary or involuntary, except in the case of merger
or consolidation, the holders of the preferred shares shall be entitled to be paid in
full, at par, or ratably, insofar as the assets of the Company will permit, for each
share of preferred shares held together with the accumulated and unpaid
dividends thereon, in Philippine currency, to the date of distribution, before any
distribution shall be made to the holders of ordinary shares; the remaining assets
of the Company shall be apportioned to the holders of the ordinary shares.

10. Income Taxes

The Company has no taxable income in 2019 and 2018 hence, no provision for 
income tax was recognized. 

The reconciliation of the benefit from income tax computed at statutory income tax 
rate to the actual provision for provision for income tax shown in profit or loss is as 
follows: 

Losses before income tax 

Statutory income tax rate at 30% 
Adjustment in income tax 

resulting from the tax effects 
of the following: 
Unrecognized deferred 

income tax asset 
Nondeductible ex nses 

2019 

(P1 ,048,021) 

(P314,406) 

314,406 

p 

2018 

(P947,771) 

(P284,331) 

214,491 
69,840 

p -

2017 

(P1, 105,660) 

(P331,698) 

292,458 
39,240 

p -

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has unused NOLCO amounting to 
P2,737,852 and P2,090, 163, respectively, for which no deferred income tax asset 
was recognized. Management believes that it is not probable that future taxable 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be 
utilized prior to its expjration. 

Details of the Company's NOLCO are as follows: 

Applied Applied 
Year Previous Current Ending Expiry 

Incurred Amount Year Year Expired Balance Date 

2016 P400,332 p - p - P400,332 p - 2019 
2017 974,860 974,860 2020 
2018 714,971 714,971. 2021 
2019 1,048 021 1_,048,021 2022 

P3,138,184 p - p P400,332 P2,737,852 
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11. Loss Per Share

The Company's basic loss per share is P0.0009, P0.0008 and P0.0010 as at 
December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of 
basic loss per share are as follows: 

Loss used in the calculation of 
total basic loss per share 

2019 

P1,048,021 

2018 2017 

P947,771 P1,105,660 
Weighted average number of 

ordinary shares for the 
purposes of basic loss per 
share 1,124,999,969 1,124,999,969 1,124,999,969 

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2019, 2018 and 2017 used for 
the purposes of basic loss per share were computed as follows: 

Number of 
Ordinary 

Shares 
Proportion to Weighted 

Outstanding shares at the 
beginning and end of the year 1,124,999,969 

Period Average 

12/12 1,124,999,969 

The Company did not have any potential dilutive instruments as at December 31, 
2019, 2018 and 2017. 

12. Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value of Financial Liabilities 
The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's financial liabilities 
as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are presented below: 

2019 2018 

Carrying Carrying 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

Financial Liabilities 
Accounts payable P1,439,000 P1,439,000 P1,439,000 P1 ,439,000 
Accrued expenses 562,576 562,576 567,276 567,276 
Due to related (!!rties 6,762,212 6,762,212 5,607,884 5,607,884 

PB,763,788 PB,763,788 P7,614,160 P7,614, 160 

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to either 
the demand feature or relatively short-term duration of these payables. 
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13. Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk through its financial liabilities. The risks and 
respective risk management policies employed by the Company to manage this risk 
are discussed below: 

Liquidity Risk Management 
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the BODs, which has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management 
of the Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management 
requirements. Since there is no operation and no business opportunity at this time, 
the Company's stockholders have advanced and are willing to advance monies to 
satisfy the cash requirements of the Company. 

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities 
based on contractual undiscounted amounts or on the estimated timing of cash flows 
as at December 31: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to related parties 

Within 1 Year 

2019 2018 

P1,439,000 
562,576 

6,762,212 

PS,763,788 

P1,439,000 
567,276 

5,607,884 

P7,614,160 

14. Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to 
continue as going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the 
optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Company's overall strategy remains 
unchanged from 2018. 

The capital structure of the Company consists of total liabilities and equity of the 
Company. 

The Company's BODs review the capital structure of the Company on an annual 
basis. As part of this review, the BODs consider the cost of capital and the risks 
associated with each class of capital. The Company has a target debt to equity ratio 
of 1 :1 determined as the proportion of net debt to equity. 

The debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting periods is as follows: 

Debt 
Equity 

Debt to equity ratio 

- 12 -

2019 

PS,763,788 
15,133,846 

0.58:1 

2018 

P7,614,160 
16,181,867 

0.47:1 



15. Reconciliation of Liabilities from Financing Activity

Balance, January 1 
Advances received from related parties 

Balance, December 31 

16.SubsequentEvents

2019 

PS,607,884 

1,154,328 

PG,762,212 

2018 

P4,740, 186 
867,698 

P5,607,884 

On March 8, 2020, under Proclamation 922, the President of the Philippines (the 
"President") has declared a state of public health emergency due to the spread of the 
Corona Virus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) in the country. Subsequently on March 16, 
2020, under Proclamation 929, the previously declared state of public health 
emergency was upgraded into a state of calamity. To manage the spread of the 
COVID-19, the entire Luzon has been placed under an Enhanced Community 
Quarantine (ECQ}, effective from March 17, 2020 until April 12, 2020, which was 
further extended to May 15, 2020. On May 12, 2020, the government announced that 
only Metro Manila, Laguna and Cebu City would be under modified ECQ (MECQ) 
from May 16 to May 31, 2020. On May 15, 2020 a resolution by the Inter-Agency 
Task Force on Emerging Infectious Diseases (IATF-EID) declared additional areas in 
Luzon under Modified ECQ namely Bataan, Bulacan, Nueva Ecija, Pampanga 
including Angeles City and Zambales, which involved several measures including 
travel restrictions, home quarantine and temporary suspension or regulation of 
business operations, among others, limiting activities related to the provision of 
essential goods and services. Starting June 1, 2020, the NCR, the entire Region 2, 3 
and 4-A, Albay, Pangasinan and Davao City were placed under General Community 
Quarantine (GCQ) as approved by the President through the recommendation of 
IATF. The rest of the country were placed under Modified GCQ. On June 15, 2020, 
the government announced that GCQ in Metro Manila was further extended until 
June 30, 2020. 

During the ECQ, a strict home quarantine is implemented in all households, 
transportation is suspended, provision for food and essential health services is 
regulated and the presence of uniformed personnel to enforce quarantine 
procedures is heightened. This event did not have a significant impact on the 
Company as it currently has no operations. 
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17. Supplementary Information Required by the BIR under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS, and such other standards 
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to 
provide in the notes to financial statements, certain supplementary information for 
the taxable year. The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily be 
the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were 
prepared in accordance with PFRS. The following are the tax information required for 
the taxable year ended December 31, 2019: 

a. VAT

The Company has no transactions subject to Output VAT.

Input VAT 
Beginning of the year 
Current year's domestic purchases: 

a. Goods for resale/manufacture or further processing
b. Goods other than for resale or manufacture
c. Services lodged under other accounts

Claims for tax credit/refund and other adjustments 

Balance at the end of the year 

b. All Other Taxes (Local and National)

Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
"Taxes and licenses" Account under Operating 
Expenses 
License and permit fees 

c. Tax Cases and Assessments

P562,000 

101,608 

P663,608 

P8,072 

As at December 31, 2019, the Company has no pending tax cases nor has it
received tax assessment notices from the BIR.

Information on tariff fees paid or accrued, are not applicable since the Company did 
not enter into transactions which will result to payment or accrual of such taxes. 
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DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Years ended 
Ratio Formula December 31 

2019 2018 

Total Current Assets divided by Total Current 
Liabilities 

Total current assets p -

Current ratic Divide b::{ Total current liabilities 8,763,788 - -

p -

Working Capital (Current Assets - Current Liabilities) divided 

I by Total Assets 

Total current assets p -

Working Less: Total current li9bilities 8,763,788 
capital to Working capital (8,763,788) (0.37) (0.32) 
assets Divide b::i:: Total assets 23,897,634 

(0.37) 

Debt-to equity ratio (Total Liabilities over Total Equity) 

Debt-to- Total liabilities P8,763,788 

equity Divide b::i:: Total !:9Uitt 15, 133_,846 0.58 047 
ratio 0.58 

Long term debt-to equity ratio (Total Long-term Debt over 
Total Equity) 

Long term 
Total long- term debt p debt-to-

-

Divide by: Total equity -

- -

equity 
ratio p -

Fixed asset-to-equity ratio (Total Fixed Assets over Total 
Equity) 

Fixed 
Fixed asset p -

assets-to-
Less: Accumulated depreciation -

- -

equity Total -

ratio Divide by: Total eQuitJ!_ 15,133,846 

p -



 

Years ended 

Ratio Formula December 31 

2019 2018 
I Creditors equity to total assets (Total liabilities over Total 

Assets) 
Creditors 

equity to- Total liabilities P8,763,788 0.37 0.32 
total Total assets 23,897,634 
assets 0.37 

Fixed asset-to-equity ratio (Total Fixed Assets over Total 
Equity) 

Fixed Fixed asset p -

assets-to- Less: Accumulated depreciation 
- -

long term- Total -

debt Divide by: Lon9:term debt -

p -

-

Return on Assets (Net Income by Total Assets) 

Net income p -

Return on Divide by; Total assets 23,897,634 � -

assets 
p -

Return on Equity (Net Income by Total Equity) 

Net income p -

Return on Divide by: Total eQUi!Y 15,133,846 -

equity 
p -

Gross profit ratio (Gross income over Revenues) 

Gross income p -

Gross Divide by: Revenues -

-

profit ratio 
p -

Operating income to revenues (Income from operations over 
Revenues) 

Operating Income from operations p -

income to Divide b;t:: Revenues -

- -

revenues 
p -



 

Years ended 

Ratio Formula December 31 

2019 2018 

Pretax Pretax income to revenues (Pretax income over Revenues) 
income to 
revenues Pretax income P-

Divide by: Revenues -

P-

Net income to Net income to commission income (Net income over 
Commission Revenues) 
income 

Net income P-
Divide by: Revenues . 

� -

P-



Map of Group of Companies Within which the Company Belongs 
As at December 31, 2019 

INVESCAP 

INCORPORATED 

(85.00%) 

SB EQUITIES, INC. 
TOWER SECURITIES, INC. 
COL FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. 

TGN REAL TY CORP. 
GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES & HOLDINGS, INC. 
BOO SECURITIES CORPORATION 

KINGS POWER SECURITIES 
ABACUS SECURITIES CORPORATION 
ASTRA SECURITIES CORPORATION 

EVERGREEN STOCK BROKERAGE & SEC, INC. 
A & A SECURITIES, INC. 
ANSALDO GODINEZ & CO., INC. 
TESERO, INC. 
FIRST METRO SECURITIES BROKERAGE 
BPI SECURITIES CORPORATION 
SECURITIES SPECIALIST, INC. 
HDI SECURITIES, INC. 
PHILSTOCK FINANCIAL INC. 

DOMESTIC 

CORPORATIONS*** 

(14.48%) 

DA VINCI CAPITAL 

HOLDINGS INC. 

EASTERN SECURITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

INDIVIDUALS 

(0.52%) 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

SCHEDULE A. FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Name of Issuing entity and 
Number of shares or 

Amount shown in the 
Valued based on market 

Income received and 
principal amount of quotation at balance sheet 

association of each issue (i) 
bonds and notes 

balance sheet (ii) 
date (iii) 

accrued 
-

NOT APPLICABLE 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

SCHEDULE B. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES AND 
PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS (OTHER THAN AFFILIATES) 

Balance at 
I 

Name and Designation beginning of Amounts Amounts Not Balance at end of 

of debtor (i) period Additions collected (ii) written off (iii) Current Current period 

NOT APPLICABLE 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

SCHEDULE C. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH ARE ELIMINATED DURING THE 

CONSOLIDATION OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Name and Designation of debtor 
Balance at 

beginning of 
eriod 

Additions 
Amounts 

collected (i) 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Amounts 
written off (ii) 

Current Not Current 
Balance at 

end of period 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

SCHEDULE D. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - OTHER ASSETS 

nee at beginning 
ot riod 

Acldlllons 
Chatged lo cosla and 

ex ses 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Olhl!lr Changes, additions/ 1 

ded'.uctions 1 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

SCHEDULE E. LONG TERM DEBT 

Amount shown Amount shown 
under caption under caption 

Number of 
Final 

Title of Issue 
Outstanding "Current portion "Long-Term Interest 

Periodic and type of Lender 
Balance of long-term Debt'' in related Rates 

Installments 
Maturity 

obligation (i) 
debr in related balance sheet 

balance sheet (ii) (iii) 

NOT APPLICABLE 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS_, INC. 
SCHEDULE F. INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES (LONG TERM LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES) 

N'ame, ,DI, Relaied Parties (i) Be anc:e at beg· ning of pec;iod Balance al end or period (ii} 

NOT APPLICABLE 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

SCHEDULE G. GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUERS 

Name of issuing entity of securities 
Title of issue of each class of 

Total amount Amount owned by 
guaranteed by the company for which 

securities guaranteed 
guaranteed and person for which Nature of guarantee (ii) 

this statement is filed outstanding (i) statement is filed 

NOT APPLICABLE 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS INC. 

SCHEDULE H. CAPITAL STOCK 

Title of Issue 

Preferred Shares 

Common Shares 

Number of Shares 
authorized 

3,000,000,000 

1200 000 000 

I 

Number of shares issued 
and outstanding at shown 

under related balance 
sheet caption 

1 124 999 969 

Number of Directors. 
Number of shares 

treasury common 
held by affiliates 

officers and Others 
shares employees 

I 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

RECONCILATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS 

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

NOT APPLICABLE 
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Management Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations 

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and plan of operations should be 

read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and the related notes as of 

December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, which are included in this report.   

The financial analysis tools used as key performance indicators for the Corporation’s 

operations and in determining its profitability and liquidity are the following: 

1. Percentages analysis to show the relationship of each income statement

component to total sales on comparable basis.

2. Financial Highlights to summarize the operating results for the last three

years that include sales growth analysis, return on sales, return on assets,

return on equity, current ratio, and debt to equity ratio.

Percentage Analysis 

2019 2018 2017 

Net Sales 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Cost of Goods Sold 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Gross Profit 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Operating Expenses 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Net Operating Income 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Other charges (net) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Income before income 

tax 
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Provision for income tax 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Net Income 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Operating Results for year ended December 31, 2019 VS December 31, 2018 

At present, the Corporation does not have any operations. 

Financial Highlights: (Based on the Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements) 

Increase/(Decrease) 2018 2017 2016 Average 

Sales growth 1 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Return on sales (ROS) 2 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Return on assets (ROA) 3 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Return on equity 4 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Current ratio 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Debt-equity ratio 6 0.58 0.47 0.38 0.48 

1 The percentage change in sales value over prior year sales. 
2 Represents percentage (%) of net income over net sales. 
3 Represents percentage (%) of net income over total assets. 
4 Represents percentage (%) of net income over stockholders’ equity. 
5 Represents the ratio of current assets over current liabilities. It also represents the Corporation’s liquidity. 
6 Represents the percentage (%) of total liabilities over total stockholders’ equity. 
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2019 and 2018Analytical Discussion 

Sales Growth 

No sales in 2019 and 2018since it has no operations since 2013. 

Profitability 

The Corporation’s return on sales (ROS) was 0% for the years 2019 and 2018since it 

has no operations since 2013. 

Solvency and Liquidity 

The Corporation’s current ratio for the years 2019 and 2018 was nil since it has no 

operations since 2013. 

2019 and 2018 Analytical Discussion 

Sales Growth 

No sales in 2019 and 2018 since it has no operations since 2013. 

Profitability 

The Corporation’s return on sales (ROS) was 0% for the years 2019 and 2018 since it 

has no operations since 2013. 

Solvency and Liquidity 

The Corporation’s current ratio for the years 2019 and 2018 was nil since it has no 

operations since 2013. 

Material Changes in the Financial Statements 

The following are the summary of items that has material change in the financial 

statements: 

2018 2017 2016 Average 

Receivables (net) – – – – 

Assets held for disposal – – – – 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (0.2%) 9% 14% 8% 

Due to related parties 21% 18% 29% 23% 

Current portion of long term debt – – – – 

Liabilities directly associated with 

assets held for disposal 
– – – – 

Material Changes in the Financial Statements in 2019 and 2018 
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Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

This pertains to the expenses accrued up to December 31, 2019 representing 

professional fees and other expenses to third parties that render services to the 

Corporation for reportorial requirements with the SEC and the PSE. 

Material Changes in the Financial Statements in 2019 and 2018 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

This pertains to the expenses accrued up to December 31, 2019 representing 

professional fees and other expenses to third parties that render services to the 

Corporation for reportorial requirements with the SEC and the PSE. 

Plan of Operations 

As of December 31, 2019, the Corporation has yet to identify a feasible investment 

opportunity.  When the Corporation identifies such a viable project, it will then pursue 

capital raising activities either by way of a rights offering, public offering or private 

placement transaction.  Since there is no operation and no business opportunity at this 

time, the Corporation’s stockholders have advanced and are willing to advance monies 

to satisfy the cash requirements of the Corporation. 

Other Reporting Disclosures 

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is 

material to the Corporation, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. 

There are no: 

(i.) Known trends or events, which may have material effect on the Company’s 

short-term or long-term liquidity; 

(ii.) Issuances, repurchases, and repayment of equity securities; 

(iii.) Segment revenue and segment result for business segment or geographical 

segments; 

(iv.) Changes in the composition of the Corporation during the interim period; 

(v.) Changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets; 

(vi.) Existence of material contingencies and any other events or transactions that 

are material to an understanding of the current interim period; 

(vii.) Material changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods 

of the current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts reported in 

prior financial years; 

(viii.) Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations 

(including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the 

Corporation with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the 

reporting period; 

(ix.) Known trends or events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably 

expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or 

revenues or income from continuing operations. 
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June 29, 2020 

Securities and Exchange Commission 
G/F Secretariat Bldg., PICC Complex 
Roxas Blvd., Pasay City 1307 

Attention: Mr. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.  
Director, Markets and Securities Regulation Department 

Ms. Rachel Esther J. Gumtang-Remalante 
Head, Corporate Governance and Finance Department 

Philippine Stock Exchange 
9th Floor, PSE Tower 
28th Street corner 5th Avenue, 
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 

Attention: Ms. Janet A. Encarnacion 
Head, Disclosure Department 

Gentlemen: 

For submission is the First Quarterly Report (SEC 17-Q) of DA VINCI CAPITAL 
HOLDINGS, INC. for the year 2020.  

Thank you, 

Candy H. Dacanay – Datuon 
Compliance Officer  



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

SEC FORM 17-Q 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES 
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER 

1. For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2020

2. Commission identification number 24015 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-282-553

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization PHILIPPINES

7. Address of issuer's principal office No. 900 Romualdez St
'.
, Paco, Manila

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code (02) 523-3055

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

Formerly: Mariwasa Siam Holdings, Inc. and Mariwasa Manufacturing, Inc.; Barrio San
Antonio, Sto. Tomas, Batangas

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of

the RSA

Title of each Class Number of shares of common 

stock outstanding and amount of debt outstanding 

Common Stock, P0.023 1,124,999,969 

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [XJ No [ l

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed
therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Common Stock

ANNEX "D"



12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17

thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11 (a)-1 thereunder, and Sections

26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve

( 1 2) months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such

reports)

Yes [Xl No [ l

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for tihe past ninety (90) days.

Yes [Xl No [ l

PART l·•FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

Quarterly Report 

March 31, 2020 

Item 1 . Interim Financial Statements 

Statements of Financial Position** 

Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Statements of Changes in Equity 

Statements of Cash Flow 

* With comparative audited figures as of December 31, 2019

2 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 
(In Thousands Philippine Peso) 

A S S E T

Non-current Asset 

Prepayments and other assets 

TOTAL ASSET 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

L I A B I LI T I E S 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Due to a related party 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

S T O C K H O L D E R S' E Q U I T Y 

Capital Stock 

Additional Paid-In Capital 

Deficit 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

March 31, 2020 December 31, 
(Unaudited) 2019 (Audited) 

23,968 23,898 

23,968 23.,,898 

2,023 2,002 
7,432 6,762 

9,454 8,764 

25,875 25,,875 

46,033 46,033 

(57,394) (56,774) 

14,514 15, 134 

23,968 23,898 



DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(In Thousand Philippine Peso) 

INCOME 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

LOSS BEFORE TAX 

INCOME TAX 

LOSS 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

Unaudited Three Months 

ended 

March 31, March 31, 

2020 2019 

(620) (785)

(620) (785)

(620) (785)

(620) (785)

Unaudit,ed Three Months 

Encled 

March31, March.31, 

2020 2019 

(620) (785)

(620) (785)

{6,20) (785) 

(62,01 (785) 
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DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

(In Thousands Philippine Peso) 

Capital stock 

Additional appropriations 

Deficit 

Beginning of year 

Loss 

End 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Unaudited 

March 31, March 31, 

Notes 2020 201 9 

2 25,875 25,875 

46,033 46,033 

(56,774) (55,726) 

(620) (785)

(57,394) (56,511) 

14,514 15,397 
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DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In Thousands Philippine Peso) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Loss before tax 

Increase (Decrease) in: 

Prepayments and other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 

CASH AT END OF PERIOD 

Unaudited 

March 31, 

2020 

(620) 

(71) 

690 

March 31, 
2019 

(785) 

(89) 

874 
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DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS IND/CA TOR 

Below are the financial ratios that are relevant to the Company for the period ended March 

31, 2020 and 2019: 

2020 2019 

Current Ratio 

Long term Debt-to-Equity Ratio 

Asset-to-equity Ratio 

EBITDA to total interest 

Return on Equity 

Current assets 

Current liabilities 

Lon term debt 

Equity 

Asset 

Equity 

EBITDA 

Interest expense 

Net Income (Loss) 

Equity 

1.65 

(4.28%) 

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies 

Basis of Preparation 

1.55 

(5.09%) 

The financial statements were prepared under the historical cost basis. The financial 

statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P) which is the Company's functional and 

presentation currency, and rounded off to the nearest thousands, except when 

otherwise stated. 

Statement of Compliance 

The separate financial statements were prepared in compliance with the Philippine 

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 

Note 2 Capital Stock 

Information on capital stock as of March 31, 2020 are as follows: 

Preferred stock at P0.10 par value per share 

Authorized 

Issued 

Common stock at P0.023 par value per share 

Authorized 

Issued 

Number of 

shares 

3,000,000,000 

1,200,000,000 

1,124,999,969 

The accompanying unaudited interim statements of financial position, statements of 

changes in equity and cash flows as of March 31, 2020, and the related unaudited 
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interim statements of comprehensive income for the quarter ended adopts the same 
accounting policies and methods of computation with that of the most recent annual 
audited financial statements and is in conformity with the generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

The comparative statements of financial position as of the end of the immediate 
preceding financial year are audited. 

Note 3 Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share 

Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per share are computed as follows: 

Net income (loss) [al 

Weighted average number of shares 
outstanding [bl 

Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per share [a/bl 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

(620,600) (784,921) 

1,124,999,969 1, 124,999,969 

(0.00055) (0.00070) 

Item 2. Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

The financial statements analysis tool used as key performance indicators for the Company's 
operations is Financial Highlights that summarizes the operating results for the last two (2) 
years that includes return on assets and return on equity. 

The percentage analysis ceased to be applicable to the Company being a holding company 
that does not have any operations and there is no investment yet to date. 

Operating Results for 1st Quarter of 2020 

Since there is no other operating subsidiary, the Company did not generate cash. There is no 
material change in financial condition and results of operation during the period. 

Financial Hi • hli hts (based on financial statements) 

Return on Assets 

Return on Equity 

March 31, 2020 

(0.02) 

(0.04) 

March 31, 2019 

(0.03) 

(0.05) 

Return on assets represents percentage of net income (loss) over total assets. 

Return on equity represents percentage of net income (loss) over stockholders' equity. 

Profitabilit 

The Company shows a net loss brought about by the disposal of its wholly owned subsidiary. 

Material Changes in the Financial Statements 

There were no material changes in the financial statements as of the period ended March 31, 
2020. 
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There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to 

the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. 

There are no: 

1. Known trends, demand, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have material

impact on the Company's liquidity;

2. Issuances, repurchases, and repayment of equity securities;

3. Material commitments for capital expenditures;

4. Known trends, event or uncertainties that have or that are reasonably expected to have

favorable or unfavorable impact on sales/revenues/income from continuing operations;

5. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing

operations;

6. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or result of

operations;

7. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including

contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated

entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Financial Risk Disclosure 

At present, the Company has no operations and as such, is not exposed to any financial risk. 

Furthermore, the Company has no financial instruments. 

Plan of Operations 

As of March 31, 2020, the Company has yet to identify a feasible investment opportunity. 

When the Company has been able to identify such a viable project, it will then pursue capital 

raising activities either by way of a rights offering, public offering or private placement 

transaction. Since there is no operation and no business opportunity at this time, the Company 

can satisfy its cash requirements and there is no need to raise additional funds in the next 

twelve ( 1 2) months. Furthermore, the Company has no any product research and 

development, no expected purchase or sale of plant and significant equipment and no expected 

significant changes in the number of employees. Also, the Company's stockholders have 

advanced and are willing to advance monies to satisfy the cash requirements of the Company. 

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 

The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and 

measurement of the Company's financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on 

classification and measurements of financial liabilities. 

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 

No other significant information for the quarter. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has 
duly caused this SEC 17 Q 1 - 2020 report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned 
thereunto duly authorized. ..--

Manila, June�. 2020. 

DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 

Treasurer 

Signature Page SEC Ql-2020 Davin (Instructions) 
February 2001 



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

I, ANGELO PATRICK F. ADVINCULA, Filipino, of legal age and with office at 
Room 2703 88 Corporate Center, 141 Sedetio Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City, after 
having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that: 

1. I am a nominee for independent director of DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, 
INC. and have been its independent director since  May 2013.. 

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including 
Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations): 

COMPANY / ORGANIZATION POSITION / 
RELATIONS 

PERIOD OF 
SERVICE 

N/A N/A N/A 

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an 
Independent Director of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. as provided for in 
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and 
Regulations and other SEC issuances. 

4. I am not related to any of the director/officer/substantial shareholder of Da Vinci 
Capital Holdings, Inc. 

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or 
administrative investigation or proceeding. 

6. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as 
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing 
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance, and other SEC issuances. 

7. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. of any 
changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence. 

'trilkSt' 	- 
Done, this 	day of July 2020 at  ITY OF MANILi  

Certification of Independent Director: 

ANGELO PATRICK F. ADVINCULA 
Nominee for Independent Director 

Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. 



JUL 2 1 2020 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 	day of July 2020 in Manila, 
Philippines, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me competent proof of 
his identity. 

Doc. No. 2 
Page No. c 
Book No. v I II 
Series of 2020. 

	

EMMA RHEA B 	L.CAPISTRANO 

	

Notary Pu 	for the City of Manila 
Commission No. 2019.100 until December 31, 2020 

Roll No. 55724 
IBP Lifetime Member No. 07476 

PTR No. 9123815101.03.20201 Mla 
MCLE No. V1.0022.189 04-16-19 

No. 900 Romualdez St., Paco, Manila 



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

I, ANTERO JOSE M. CAGANDA, Filipino, of legal age and with office at Room 
2703 88 Corporate Center, 141 Sedefio Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City, after having 
been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that: 

1. I am a nominee for independent director of DA VINCI CAPITAL HOLDINGS, 
INC. and have been its independent director since  May 2013.. 

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including 
Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations): 

COMPANY / ORGANIZATION POSITION / 
RELATIONS 

PERIOD OF 
SERVICE 

N/A N/A N/A 

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an 
Independent Director of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. as provided for in 
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and 
Regulations and other SEC issuances. 

4. I am not related to any of the director/officer/substantial shareholder of Da Vinci 
Capital Holdings, Inc. 

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or 
administrative investigation or proceeding. 

6. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as 
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing 
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance, and other SEC issuances. 

7. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Da Vinci Capital Holdings, Inc. of any 
changes in the abovementioned information within five days from its occurrence. 

f‘mt 2°  
Done, this 	day of July 2020 at 	VIP Ivo a L  	' 

Certification of Independent Director: 

ANTERO E M. CAGANDA 
Nominee fo ndependent Director 

Da Vinci apital Holdings, Inc. 



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this  OUL  day  p2. o Ju?  y 2020 in Manila, 
Philippines, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me competent proof of 
his identity. 

Doc. No. 26; 
Page No.  3-1 
Book No. XV II/ 
Series of 2020. 

EMMA RH 	S D RAL-CAPISTRANO 
Notar P blic for the City of Manila 

Commission No. 2019-100 until December 31, 2020 
Roll No. 55724 

IBP Lifetime Member No. 07476 
PTR No. 9123815 1 01.03.20201 Mla 

MCLE No. VI.0022489 10416.19 
No. 900 Romualdez SL, Paco, Manila 
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